ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 30, 2007
1:57 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Gene Therriaul t

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 128
"An Act relating to the sale, distribution, and purchase of
al coholic beverages; relating to a state database for records of
certain alcoholic purchases of alcoholic beverages; relating to
procedures for local option elections for control of alcoholic
beverages; and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED CSSB 128(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 8
“"An Act relating to a nmental health patient's right to choose
the gender of hospital staff providing intimate care to the
mental health patient and to the duties of hospital staff in
caring for patients receiving nental health treatnent."”

MOVED CSSB 8((JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 145
"An Act relating to municipal inmpoundnment and forfeiture."”
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO 157
“"An Act relating to human trafficking and prostitution.™
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 128

SHORT TITLE. ALCOHOL LOCAL OPTI ON PROVI SI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) OLSON

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2007



03/ 19/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 19/ 07 (S) CRA, JUD, FIN

03/ 27/ 07 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 27/ 07 (S) Moved CSSB 128( CRA) Cut of Committee
03/ 27/ 07 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 28/ 07 (S) CRA RPT CS 3DP NEW TI TLE

03/ 28/ 07 (S) DP: OLSON, THOWAS, KOOKESH

04/ 23/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 23/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 23/ 07 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

BILL: SB 8

SHORT TI TLE: MENTAL HEALTH PATI ENT RI GHTS: STAFF GENDER
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) HES, JUD, FIN

04/ 18/ 07 (S) HES AT 2: 00 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 18/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 18/ 07 (S) M NUTE( HES)

04/ 23/ 07 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 23/ 07 (S) Moved SB 8 Qut of Committee

04/ 23/ 07 (S) M NUTE( HES)

04/ 25/ 07 (S) HES RPT 4DP 1NR

04/ 25/ 07 (S) DP: DAVIS, ELTON, THOVAS, DYSON
04/ 25/ 07 (S) NR. COADERY

04/ 30/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 145
SHORT TI TLE: MUNI'S | MPOUND/ FORFEI T MOTOR VEHI CLE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MOGUI RE

03/ 28/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 28/ 07 (S) CRA, JUD

04/ 24/ 07 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 24/ 07 (S) Moved CSSB 145(CRA) Qut of Committee
04/ 24/ 07 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

04/ 25/ 07 (S) CRA RPT CS 4DP  NEW TI TLE

04/ 25/ 07 (S) DP: OLSON, WAGONER, STEVENS, KOOKESH
04/ 30/ 07 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

G NNY AUSTERMAN, Staff to Senator Donny O son
Al aska State Capitol

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 30, 2007



Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Rei ntroduced SB 128 for the sponsor.

ANNI E CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Depart nment of Law

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to SB 128.

TOM OBERMVEYER, Staff to Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 8 for the sponsor.

RON ADLER, CEO

Al aska Psychiatric Institute

Di vi si on of Behavioral Health

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to SB 8.

FAI TH MEYERS, Mental Health Advocate
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 8 as witten.

DORRANCE COLLINS, Mental Health Advocate
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 8 as witten.

JIM GOTTSTEI N, President and CEO

Law Project for Psychiatric Rights

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 8.

ANDREA SCHMOCOK, Chair

Al aska Mental Health Board

Di vision of Behavioral Health

Departnent of Health and Social Services
Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Voi ced support for SB 8.

PAULA SCAVERA, Speci al Assi stant

Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to SB 145.

LARRY MCKI NSTRY, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 30, 2007



Departnent of Law

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to |egal questions related to SB
145.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:57:41 PM Present at the call to
order were Senator Therriault, Senator MQ@ire, and Chair
French. Senator Wel echowski arrived shortly thereafter

SB 128- ALCOHOL LOCAL OPTI ON PROVI SI ONS

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 128. He asked M.
Austerman to refresh nembers’ recoll ections about the bill.

1:58: 11 PM
G NNY AUSTERMVAN, Staff to Senator Donny O son, recapped that the
bill came about at the request of the Rural Justice Comm ssion

It is an integral part of the effort to regulate the sale,
di stribution, purchase, and shipnent of alcoholic beverages into
danp local option comunities wthin Al aska. The Al coho
Beverage Control Board (ABC) Board would be required to create
and maintain a database of tinely information related to witten
orders for alcohol that is shipped to individuals. The package
store licensee or its agent nust consult the database prior to

filling each order. Imediately after filling the order, the
date and the amount of the new order mnust be add to the
dat abase. This w |l adversely inpact bootl eggers, she said. The
information in the database will be accessible only to package

stores and |aw enforcenment. SB 128 al so contains a provision to
correct an omssion in state law so that organized boroughs
woul d be able to transfer borough |liquor licenses to comunities
wi thin that borough

M5. AUSTERVMAN noted a proposed amendnent and said the sponsor is
happy to accept that anendnment. In response to a question, she
rel ayed that Sections 4 and 5 relate to the transfer of I|iquor
i censes.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if anything in those sections requires that
the transfers be done at fair narket val ue.

M5. AUSTERMAN replied she’s not aware of anything that spells
t hat out.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH asked if the sponsor or the Departnent of Law would
obj ect to adding a provision along those |ines.

M5. AUSTERMAN said the sponsor woul d not object.

2:00:51 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law,
said she would like to check with the head of the ABC Board
before adding that provision because Title 4 really doesn’'t
address commercial value of liquor |icenses.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that the bill has a finance referral and said
that may be the place to take care of that point.

2:01: 26 PM
CHAI R FRENCH of fered Anmendnent 1 as the sponsor.

AMENDMVENT 1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO CSSB 128( CRA)

Page 2, line 22:
Fol | ow ng “purchaser.”

| nsert:

“Fai lure by a package store |icensee, agent
or enployee to enter into the database the date
and the anount of al coholic beverages shipped to
the purchaser is a class B m sdeneanor.”

Page 5, followi ng line 30:
| nsert:
“*Sec. 11 AS 04.16.180(a) is anended to
read:
(a) Except as provided in AS 04.11.015, AS
04. 16. 025, 04. 16. 050, 04. 16. 051, 04.11. 150(9),
04.16. 200-04. 16. 210, and AS 04.21.065, a person
who violates a provision of this title or a
regul ati on adopted by the board is gqguilty, upon
conviction, of a <class A msdeneanor. Each
violation is a separate offense.”

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

SENATOR McGUI RE obj ected for discussion purposes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH explained that the anmendnent is the result of
di scussion during the previous hearing. The bill inposes new
duties on liquor store clerks and there was sone question about
the level of the violation should a clerk not conport with those
new duti es. Before the hearing M. Carpeneti said that
unaut hori zed release of information that will be gathered into
t he database will be a class A m sdeneanor.

M5. CARPENETI said, “The default penalty for Title 8 violations
is a class A msdeneanor unless it’'s specifically excepted and
anot her penalty is provided.”

SENATOR McGUI RE offered her interpretation, which is that the
class A msdeneanor would apply throughout Section 1 so that
anybody who is authorized to have access to the database and
uses the information in an unauthorized nmanor would be subject
to that penalty. | want it to be interpreted broadly in terns of
preserving the confidentiality of the database, she stat ed.

M5. CARPENETI said she interprets the | anguage that way as well.

2:03: 30 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI j oi ned the neeting.

CHAIR FRENCH thanked Senator MQ@ire for highlighting that
point. He read the anmendnent and said he believes that in this
instance a class B msdenmeanor would include a maxi mum of 90
days and a naximum $1,000 fine for not entering the data as
requi red by the statute.

2:04:02 PM
SENATOR McGUI RE renpved her objection.

CHAIR FRENCH, finding no further objection, announced that
Amendnent 1 i s adopt ed.

SENATOR McGUIRE notioned to report CSSB 128, as anended, from
commttee with individual recommendations and attached fi scal
not e(s).

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection CSSB 128(JUD)
noves fromcomm ttee.

At ease 2:05:37 PM

SB 8- MENTAL HEALTH PATI ENT RI GHTS: STAFF GENDER

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2007



CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 8, by Senators
Davis, Ellis, and Elton.

2: 05: 53 PM
TOM OBERMEYER, Staff to Senator Davis, explained that the bil
will give nmental health hospital patients who are 18 years of

age or older the right to request intinate care by a nurse of a
specific gender. Many such patients have had traumatic sexual or
physi cal experiences that would be aggravated if they were to
receive treatment by a nurse of a specific gender. The

supervisor of the facility will be required to post notice of
the right in a conspicuous place so the patients will know that
they may exercise the right. Wiile the bill recognizes that such

requests can not always be fulfilled, any non-conpliance to the
request nust be docunented in the patient's file. This wll
prevent the information from being ignored or lost and wll
provide a record in case of resulting trauma. Also, the bill
will preserve information for inquiry into grievance procedures
at nmental health facilities under Title 47.

MR. OBERMEYER referred to witten testinony from the Disability
Law Center of Alaska, which says that the bill would codify an
exi sting constitutional right that is not being acknow edged and
protected and that the Alaska constitution clearly recognizes
that the right to privacy is inportant under Article 1, Section

22. Case law indicates that by necessity there wll be a
relinqui shment of privacy when soneone is admtted to a nental
health facility, but that doesn't nean that all rights to
privacy are relinquished. Furthernore, it is noted that the

privacy protections provided in SB 8 are already available to
people who are incarcerated. Mental health patients are not
convicted crimnals and their right to privacy my not be
abrogated by virtue of their confinenent.

MR. OBERMEYER hi ghlighted witten testinony from Andrea Schnook,
Chair of the Al aska Mental Health Board. She indicates that the
board supports the notion that psychiatric patients should have
the right to choose the gender of a person who provides intimte
care. She notes that although the board was instrunmental in
convincing Al aska Psychiatric Institute to pronote this policy,
it believes that an isolated policy is not sufficient to
safeguard the rights of all psychiatric patients. Placing this
provision in statute will ensure that all nental health patients
will be afforded this basic right. M. Schnook says that AMHB is
sensitive to the issue of <creating a financial burden on
psychiatric hospitals, but l|anguage in the bill provides a
method for dealing with this issue. “If the patient can not be

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2007



served by soneone of the gender they choose, the hospital nust
sinply docunent that a request was nmade and that it was not able
to be honored.” SB 8 has a zero fiscal note, he said.

MR. OBERMEYER relayed that the bill offers a bal ance between the
right of a patient for privacy and choice and the physician' s
duty to provide responsible care. If the treating psychiatrist
determ nes that the choice the patient nmade is not in the best
interest of the patient’s treatnent, he or she may override that
choi ce.

2:12:17 PM

SENATOR McGUI RE described the provision as inportant and said
she supports the bill. Referring to page 1, Iline 7, which
describes “a patient 18 years of age or older” she asked how
mnors are treated. “l just wouldn't want to exclude them” she
sai d.

MR. OBERMEYER said he doesn’'t know, but people on-line probably
have the answer.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if this would afford nental health
patients a higher privacy right than sonmeone who is in a
hospital for medical care.

MR. OBERMEYER said yes, but only because these rights can be
abrogated in an involuntary commtnment. This has been an issue
many times, nost recently in two Anchorage cases brought by
attorney Janmes Cottstein.

2:14: 23 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT questioned a situation where a nale patient
requests a femal e caregiver

MR. OBERMEYER expl ained that there could be the situation where

a person was abused by a person of the sane sex. In that
circunstance the patient mght feel confortable receiving
intimate care from a person of the opposite sex. “There are

unusual circunstances particularly relating to nental health
patients that cause additional concern in this regard that you
wouldn’t find in normal hospital settings,” he stated. That’s
why the bill was drafted in this fashion

CHAIR FRENCH asked if anything in the bill requires a nurse of

either gender to put him or herself in a potentially harnful
situation by providing care.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2007



MR. OBERMEYER said he anticipates that the nental health
facility would be famliar with a patient’s particular problens
bef ore acknow edgi ng and accommodating his or her request.

CHAI R FRENCH asked M. Adler to give his perspective.

2:16: 39 PM

RON ADLER, CEO, Al aska Psychiatric Institute (API), Division of
Behavioral Health, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
explained that generally in the assessment phase of an acute
care stay, the treating psychiatrist would becone aware of any
issues related to intinmate care. The bill makes it very clear
that if the patient’s choice is to his or her detrinent in any
way, the treating psychiatrist would override the choice with a
doctor’s order.

CHAIR FRENCH added that in that situation the bill sinply
requires the doctor to docunent the decision.

MR. ADLER agr eed.

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to the circunstance of a patient who
derives perverse pleasure from receiving intimate care from a
particul ar gender. He asked if that would be detrinental to the
patient by feeding that potential perversion.

MR. ADLER said absolutely. He explained that the adm ssions
process includes a screening, which is the beginning of a
conprehensive psychiatric evaluation. After the person is
admtted to a unit, a nursing assessnent usually follows. Wthin
probably 24-hours a nurse practitioner or nedical doctor does a
nmedi cal history and physical, which is followed by an eval uation
by bot h a psychi atri st and a soci al wor ker . Any
contraindications related to intimte care usually cone out in
that evaluation period. A psychiatrist would absolutely pick up
on that and do what is in the patient’s best therapeutic
interest, he stated.

2:19:40 PM

FAITH MEYERS, Mental Health Advocate from Anchorage, stated
support for SB 8 as witten. She said she has had experience as
a patient in nental health care facilities in Al aska,
Washi ngton, and Nevada. As an advocate she has spoken wth
hospital admnistrators in a nunber of states including Al aska
| ooking for best practices. Unnecessary trauma is a reality in
health care facilities, and gender choice needs to be provided
when the patient is reasonably cooperative. The percentage of

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- April 30, 2007



wonen in acute care psychiatric facilities with a sexual abuse
past is very high; people can feel re-victimzed when treated
intimately by a person of a certain gender. Change needs to be
made in state statute rather than in individual hospital policy.
She cited several letters from people and institutions
supporting gender choice in intimate psychiatric care. [ Copies
may be found in the bill file.]

M5. MEYERS said, “SB 8 only requires psychiatric institutions to
make a good faith effort at giving gender choice of staff.” She
asked the conmttee to pass the bill.

2:24:15 PM

DORRANCE COLLINS, Mental Health Advocate from Anchorage, stated
support for SB 8 as witten. Not providing gender choice in
psychiatric in-patient settings can be traumatizing to the
patient and add to their illness. Many other states require such
a choice in their hospitals and psychiatric treatnent
facilities. He cited a recent court decision that says that
there is a clear unavoi dable tension between hospital econom cs
and patient rights. This can nmanifest itself in patient abuse

The court saw that wthout regulation this would deny
psychiatric patients their rights. The court and the |egislature
will force psychiatric hospitals to do the right thing, he said.
Many psychiatric patients have been sexually or physically
abused, and being denied gender choice in intimte care creates
trauma all over again. Passing SB 8 will return to the patient a
smal | anmount of dignity and control that was |ost when entering
a psychiatric facility.

MR. COLLINS said “SB 8 only requires psychiatric institutions to
make a good faith effort at providing gender choice of staff for

intimate care.” He asked the conmttee to pass the bill as
witten.
2:27:29 PM

JIM GOTTSTEIN, President and CEO, Law Project for Psychiatric
Rights (Psych Rights), said its mssion is to launch litigation
agai nst forced psychiatric drugging. He said he couldn't add
much to what has already been said, but he wants to add his
supporting voice. It’s a case of basic human dignity to allow
gender choice for intimate care. Causing a person to relive a
previous trauma is counter-therapeutic. There isn't a good
reason for not accommodating a request when possible, he said.
He asked nenbers to pass SB 8 fromconm ttee.

2:29: 21 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2007



ANDREA SCHMOOK, Chair, Alaska Mental Health Board, Division of
Behavioral Health, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
voi ced support for SB 8. She relayed her personal experience as
a nental patient and her previous work experience as the
II'linois director of consuner affairs for the division of nental
health. Drawi ng on her experience, she said that nental patients
need to have the right to make gender choices for intimte care
when they are in an in-patient setting. Fl ashbacks are
detrinmental to a patient’s nental health and my cause a
rel apse. I am here to support this bill personally and as chair
of the board, she concl uded.

MR. OBERMEYER suggested that M. Adler nmight be able to answer
Senator McCuire’ s question about patient age.

SENATOR MGUIRE referred to page 1, line 7, and asked how m nors
woul d be treated as a result of being excluded under this bill.

2:32:41 PM

MR. ADLER explained that a mnor who is admtted to an in-
patient wunit generally has a parent or guardian who would
resol ve the issue.

SENATOR McGUI RE asked if sinply referring to “a patient” rather
than specifying “a patient 18 years of age or older” would raise
age of mmjority issues.

MR. ADLER said he believes that when this issue came up |ast
year, Northstar Behavioral Health Hospital argued that state
statute does not override parental consent. He suggested that
the sponsor would need to consult the Departnent of Law to
verify that point.

2:34.15 PM

SENATOR McGUI RE asked M. Oberneyer to look into that because a
m nor who is abused by a parent wouldn't really have an advocate
in this sort of situation. She said she wuld be nore
confortabl e not specifying an age.

2: 35: 08 PM

CHAI R FRENCH said his thinking is along the sane |ines. He asked
if changing the age to 16, the age of consent in Al aska, would
create any problenms for API

MR ADLER said he wuld need to research that wth the
Depart nment of Law.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2007



2:35:47 PM
CHAI R FRENCH noved Anmendnent 1.

AMENDVENT 1
Page 1, line 7
Del ete “18”
I nsert “16”

CHAI R FRENCH, finding no objection, announced that Amendnent 1
i s adopt ed.

MR. ADLER stated that his only concern with the bill is that the
patient record should not be used to docunent anything rel ated
to a conpliance issue. M. Cottstein said that the mssion of
Psych Rights is to reform the nental health care system through
l[itigation and when nonconpliance is docunented in the patient
record, it opens door to potential litigation. He suggested that
there should be an alternative such as the unusual occurrence
report that APl uses.

2:37:55 PM

CHAI R FRENCH sai d that sounds reasonable and if he were to offer
| anguage to a subsequent committee, it would be given a thorough
vetting.

2:38: 24 PM
MR. OBERMEYER said the sponsor statenent anticipated this
request. It indicates that the information is useful for

confirmng the good-faith effort to conply with the patient’s
request as well as for nedical purposes. The real issue is the

fact that patient records are permanent, he said. In sone
instances the record will be used for litigation purposes, but
it wll also be wused nedically in ternms of the patient’s
out cone.

SENATOR McGUIRE referred to Senator Therriault’s question about
patient rights and said she respectfully disagrees. Mental
patients don't choose that path and it's the state's
responsibility to provide protection, she said. Intimate care is
a very personal issue and she believes that the recurrence of
this bill and the nental health advocates who go out on a linb
to testify are responsible for forcing APl to change its
policies. This is a healthy and inportant public process
focusing on the rights of the nentally ill, she stated.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 30, 2007



CHAIR FRENCH, finding no further questions or debate, closed
public testinony.

2:41: 36 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked about the penalty for inadequate
docunentation of a patient’s request.

MR. OBERMEYER said there is no penalty. It's a mtter of

docunent ati on and pati ent protection comes from the
docunent ati on. Docunenting the request in the pernanent record
will encourage facilities to give patients the right to chose

gender for intimte care.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if i nproper  docunentation would
establish the potenti al for a civil claim against the
institution.

MR. OBERMEYER said it would be a nmatter of evidence that an
attorney could look into that m ght otherw se be unavail abl e.

SENATOR MGU RE notioned to report CSSB 8 as anended from
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fi scal
not e(s).

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection CSSB 8(JUD) noves
fromcommttee.

At ease at 2:43:56 PM

CSSB 145(CRA) - MUNLS | MPOUNDY FORFEI T MOTOR VEHI CLE

2:44:58 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 145. [Before the
commttee was CSSB 145(CRA.)

SENATOR McGUI RE, sponsor of SB 145, explained that the bill
would inplenent an option for nunicipalities to set up
procedures to inpound and forfeit vehicles of individuals who
have amassed $1,000 or nore in delinquent traffic fines. She
said the Minicipality of Anchorage brought the idea forward,
because 1,017 of its individuals have a total of over $7.57
mllion in unpaid traffic fines. One person in the comrunity has
43 different citations totaling alnbst $10,000 and another has
70 traffic citations totaling nearly $8,000. She said that this
law is neant to target the habitual, repeat offenders who
blatantly disregard public safety and refuse to pay their

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 30, 2007



citation fines. Many refuse to pay the fines because they know
the nmunicipality has no recourse.

The Anchorage Assenbly unani nously passed an ordinance on this
same issue nmaking it a msdenmeanor for anyone to drive if they
have at least 3 unpaid traffic tickets. SB 145 does not do that;
it is sinply a tool that nunicipalities may use and it has no
fiscal inmpact to the state. Individuals stopped by a police
of ficer under these circunstances would |ose their vehicle for
30 days. To get it back, the individual would have to pay $390
in admnistration fees plus towng and storage fees. This 1is
neant to be a deterrent and a rem nder to encourage people to
pay their traffic fines in a tinely manner.

2:48: 35 PM

SENATOR McGQUIRE referred to a proposed anendnent to allow the
departnment of labor to help a nunicipal attorney track down
i ndividuals who have civil or <crimnal fines or penalties.
Currently the nunicipality has had difficulty getting that
cooperation, she said. The idea is for the municipality and the
departnment to have a witten agreenment specifying: the purpose
of the information; a description of the information provided;
the procedure for transmitting, securing, using or disposing of
the information; and the nethod of reinbursement of the cost for
provi ding the information.

SENATOR McGUI RE opined that this will be a useful tool because
people who amass these fines mght skip around in terms of
enpl oyment and might be difficult to track down. The departnment
of labor is nost likely to have that information, and this is an
effort to ask it to cooperate and help the nunicipality |ocate
those individuals. The bill does two things; one is nmandatory
and the other is optional, she said.

2:50: 13 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT cal cul ated the average per person anount of
the unpaid traffic fines and expressed amazenent. He asked if
the nmunicipality has any information about the value of the
vehi cles that these individuals are driving.

SENATOR McGQUIRE replied the point of the bill isn't value-for-
value; the idea is to get people's attention by taking their
vehi cl e.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he has to think about lending his

car to his neighbor if he/she one of the individuals who has
amassed large traffic fines.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 30, 2007



SENATOR MGUIRE said yes; hopefully people wll becone nore
careful about lending their vehicle. Wre trying to set up a
situation where it’s a deterrent, but <clearly the |oca
governing authority will have to establish a procedure of notice
bef ore taking soneone’s vehicle, she said.

2:53:26 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI, referring to subsection (r) in bil
section 1, asked if this applies only to municipalities and not
other legally designated fornms of governnment.

SENATOR McGUIRE replied this bill only applies to municipalities
as defined by statute.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the departnent of |abor supports
this provision.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d representatives from the Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent, the Ofice of the Attorney General, and
the Municipality of Anchorage have signed up to testify.

2:54:18 PM

PAULA SCAVERA, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DOLWD), said sone
of the questions are nore applicable to Larry MKinstry, the
attorney who represents the departnment of this issue. She is
avai |l abl e to answer questi ons.

2:55:00 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the fiscal note applies to the new
subsection (r).

MR. SCAVERA said yes. The first two years will conme from the
general fund because there won't be receipts, but the bill is
witten such that any costs wll be paid for by the
muni ci pality.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if there are any legal hurtles to
overcome to provide this information to a munici pal governnent.

M5. SCAVERA, referring to a proposed anendnent, said the
department has worked wth the sponsor to accommpdate new
federal regulations related to trading information. She deferred
to M. MKinstry for further explanation.

2:56: 21 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- April 30, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the departnment of |abor provides
information to other non-state agencies or organizations.

M5. SCAVERA explained that by federal and state Ilaw the
departnment is required to provide information to certain
entities. Child support is one exanple.

2:57:04 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked M. MKinstry to respond to the |egal
guesti on.

LARRY MCKI NSTRY, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law,
explained that disclosure of this type of information is
governed by both state statute and federal regulation. In
general, wage and unenpl oynent information is confidential and
is held by the departnent solely for the adm nistration of the
unenpl oynment insurance benefit program There are a nunber of
exceptions, but anything that the state gives up pursuant to the
state statute nust also conply with the federal regulations.
“It’s a sonmewhat conplex problem of trying to figure out whether
or not a specific request or a specific type of information
falls within one of those witten exceptions,” he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  referenced Chapter 20 of the Al aska
Enpl oynment Security Act and said the first sentence defines the
purpose, which is to pronote enploynment security. He questioned
whet her addi ng the provision does in fact do that.

MR.  MCKI NSTRY expressed uncertainty about the thrust of the
question. He explained that the statute would typically hold
this type of information confidential wunless it’'s used for
unenpl oynent  purposes. This provision would create a new
exception for the collection of fines and any civil judgnents
The provision broadens the scope of the purpose for using the
i nformati on, he added.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI, referring to subsection (r), asked what
kind of information the departnment would provide to the
muni ci pal attorney.

MR. MCKI NSTRY said specifically the information would include
the nane and address of the enployee as well as the identifying
information of the enployer. That would nmake it easier for the
municipality to locate the person who has the outstanding
tickets or judgnent.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 30, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if just the name and address of the
enpl oyee woul d be i ncl uded.

MR. MCKI NSTRY said that’s his understandi ng.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how quickly the information would
have to be provided and if the state mght be liable to a
municipality if it failed to provide the information

MR. MCKINSTRY said he understands that the requests would be
ongoing and that the information would be exchanged through a
database that’'s set up by the municipality and the state. Wth
regard to liability exposure, there will have to be a witten
agreenent between the entities that conplies with all the
restrictions that come with the federal regulation. “That should
in fact protect the state from any potential liabilities,” he
said. If the information is denied the nunicipality would need
to litigate, but once the database is established the exchange
of information will be quite straightforward.

3:03: 16 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noted that paragraph (4) on page 2, says
that within the agreenment there mnust be a “method of
rei mbursenent for the <cost of providing the information.”
Presumably the fiscal note should be zero, he said.

MR. MCKINSTRY said his wunderstanding is that there wll be
significant up-front costs to set up the database exchange, but
after that the long-term costs should be covered. Federal
regul ations make it very clear that it's a state cost if the
information is provided for purposes other than unenploynent, he
sai d.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he's saying that the state would
be fully reinbursed for the general fund expenditures through FY
2013.

MR. MCKI NSTRY said his understanding is that those costs are for
accounting, staffing to maintain the database, and to ensure
that the informati on exchange occurs when it shoul d.

M5. SCAVERA added that the fiscal note is designed to use
general funds the first two years and after that statutory
designated receipts will be used. Federal dollars can not be
used.

3:06:11 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 30, 2007



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked why it’s not possible to start out
usi ng statutory designated programreceipts.

MS. SCAVERA said the work has to be started before entering into
an agreenment with the nmunicipalities. Doing the disclosures wll
require two fulltinme positions and one for about one nonth per

year. Mre municipalities will want to cone on board over tine
and each will require a separate nenorandum of agreenent, she
sai d.

CHAIR FRENCH held SB 145 in comittee.

The neeting was adjourned at 3:08: 14 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 30, 2007



